

#### THE PARABLE OF THE FIG TREE EXPLAINED

Ву

Dr. Scott McQuate

www.InnerCircle.us

© Copyright All Rights Reserved No Form Of This Document May Be Duplicated Or Distributed Without Prior Written Consent By The Author <u>DrScott@McQuate.com</u> The Truth Will Set You Free

...but will you be ready for it?

Truth was taken to market But every man was poor From trading his precious pearls For shiny lies the day before

-Dr. Scott McQuate

### Contents

Introduction	5
The Purpose Of A Parable	6
The Parable Of The Fig Tree	8
The Fig Tree	9
The Language	10
The Figs	13
The Watchers	15
The Pyramid	17
The Leaves	20
The Meaning	23

### Introduction

The explanation of the Prophecy of the Parable of the Fig Tree that you are about to read has come from many years of research and is based on sound exegetical principles. For the traditionallyminded person, steeped in the doctrines of Mystery Babylon, however, (Revelation. 17 and 18), the truth at this website will likely be a bit difficult to digest, mentally, because of the religious paradigms that have been created for them. This difficulty in 'seeing' and 'understanding' during the End Times, has been prophesied throughout the Bible in passages such as Isaiah 29:10 and II Thessaloanians 2:11, yet the modern-day Christian always seems to think these passages refer to 'someone else'. The fact of the matter is, this blindness affects anyone who does not have 'eves to see'. There are numerous reasons for the blindness but it is often overcome by simply having the truth presented in such a way that it can be understood. Let's first look at the purpose of a parable...

### The Purpose Of A Parable

The purpose of a parable is to cover the real meaning behind the story, so that only those who are capable of understanding it or willing to put forth enough effort to find the meaning, will do so. This effort or ability is literally a type of spiritual test to sift away those who do not care about the significance of the teaching, because that concern (or lack thereof) is truly an outward sign of the heart or 'spiritual fortitude' of the person.

We find this teaching expressed in Matthew 13:10-17 where we read: And the disciples came, and said unto him, Why speakest thou unto them in parables? He answered and said unto them, Because it is given unto you to know the mysteries of the kingdom of heaven, but to them it is not given. For whosoever hath, to him shall be given, and he shall have more abundance: but whosoever hath not, from him shall be taken away even that he hath. Therefore speak I to them in parables: because they seeing see not; and hearing they hear not, neither do they understand. And **in them is fulfilled the prophecy of Isaiah**, which saith, By hearing ye shall hear, and shall not understand; and seeing ye shall see, and shall not perceive: For this people's heart is waxed gross, and their ears are dull of hearing, and their eyes they have closed; lest at any time they should see with their eyes, and hear with their ears, and should understand with their heart, and should be converted, and I should heal them. But blessed are your eyes, for they see: and your ears, for they hear. For verily I say unto you, That many prophets and righteous men have desired to see those things which ye see, and have not seen them; and to hear those things which ye hear, and have not heard them.

This explanation by Esu (Jesus) can help us understand the spiritual situation in the world today, why most people are spiritually insensitive and more sadly, why they simply don't care.

If they understood the importance of understanding the deeper spiritual teachings, they would drop what they were doing and devote their time and energy to learning these things for their own safety and the safety of those they are close to.

One of the most important prophecies to understand, especially at this time in history, is that given by Esu (Jesus) in the Parable of the Fig Tree. So, what is the importance of this prophecy and what significance does it have for us, today? Let's look at **The Parable of the Fig Tree...** 



Above is a picture of a fig branch. Notice the leaves are **5-pointed** and the figs are **red**. (To understand the significance of this, join my private Inner Circle at <u>www.InnerCircle.us</u>)

### The Parable Of The Fig Tree

In Matthew 24, the disciples of Esu ('Jesus') come to him privately and say, Tell us, when shall these things be? and what shall be the sign of thy coming, and of the end of the world? In response, Esu explains to them various signs of the times such as persecution, wars etc., and then tells them a prophetic parable in verse 32 when he says; Now learn a parable of the FIG TREE; When his **BRANCH** is yet tender, and **PUTTETH FORTH** LEAVES, ye know that SUMMER is nigh: So likewise ye, when ye shall see all these things, know that it is near, [even] at the doors. Verily I say unto you, This generation (race) shall not pass, till all these things be fulfilled. Heaven and earth shall pass away, but my words shall not pass away. But of that day and hour knoweth no [man], no, not the ANGELS OF HEAVEN, but my Father only. But as the days of Noe (Noah) [were], so shall also the coming of the Son of man be. For as in the days that were before the flood they were eating and drinking, marrying and giving in marriage, until the day that Noe entered into the ark. And knew not until the flood came, and took them all away; so shall also the coming of the Son of man be. Then shall two be in the field; the one shall be taken, and the other left Two grinding at the mill; the one shall be taken, and the other left. Watch therefore: for ye know not what hour your Lord doth come But know this, that if the goodman of the house had known in what watch the thief would come. he would have watched, and would not have suffered his house to be broken up. Therefore be ye also ready: for in such an hour as ye think not the Son of man cometh." But...what is the Fig Tree, really?

## The Fig Tree

The Fig Tree, of course, is not a literal tree, *fig* or otherwise. It is a metaphor representing something else. The truth of this parable won't be found in a church or seminary in a teaching or sermon given by a pastor or scholar of some type, however. The reason for this is because the principles upon which their religious foundation has been built, are the same principles, believe it or not, upon which the various secret societies such as **Rosicrucianism** and **Freemasonry** have been built, as well. These principles are based on the teachings of *Hermes*, also known as Mercury or Toth. This is why the *exegetical* principles taught to pastors for the purposes of uncovering the real meaning of the Bible, called *Hermeneutics*, will always fail. That has always been the intention of those *lying scribes* who penned the Bible (Jeremiah 8:8); *to divert attention away from the truth.* 

When translating the language of the Bible to uncover its real meaning, those principles of exegesis or Hermeneutics lead pastors to the languages with which the Bible was built, such as Greek, Hebrew, Aramaic etc., but this is not sufficient. The reason? Those languages are not old enough, and although they do contain some truth, the **essence** or the **root** of the truth resides in the **old** (Heb. *Owlam = Ancient*) paths that we are told to seek in Jeremiah 6:16, which are truly **good**.

So, what language can we turn to to begin uncovering the real meaning of this and other important teachings in the Bible?

## The Language

The oldest language known to man is that of the Sumerian; and the written form of that language is called Cuneiform. Being in the Afro-Asiatic family of languages, most language scholars will tell you that there is no connection between the Sumerian language and any language in the Semitic family of languages such as Hebrew, Aramaic, Mandaic and others, but they are incorrect.

The information I've uncovered in my exegesis of the Bible by using the Sumerian language, along with these other languages in which the Bible was written, has been nothing short of astounding when I compare it to what I was taught all throughout the many years of my Christian education. If the language of the Bible can lead us to a surface understanding of what was going on in a particular story, the Sumerian language is like a highbeam spiritual spotlight illuminating the context and telling us further, how, specifically, the actual events took place and what those events were; and I'm about to give you an example of what I mean.

Esu delivers to his 'Inner Circle' of adherents, the disciples, a story that gives them hints of His coming and what signs of the 'Fig Tree' to look for to know that day is close at hand. Also, these things are said to happen after the Abomination of Desolation is standing in the Holy Place. Although you will likely not hear this from anyone else, I will tell you as a fact, that the Abomination of Desolation A) Is not a person as is taught by the pastors of the churches, today and B) has been standing in the Holy Place for quite some time, unbeknownst to most.

The Abomination of Desolation spoken of by Esu, is referred to as the **bdelygma eramoses** in the Greek and simply means **the thing that makes desolate or brings destruction**. If you attend a church, you would never know what this is talking about, because you would have been led to believe that it is a reference to a person, such as the anti-christ, false prophet or a type of statue in the shape of a man, but those definitions are false. If any of those definitions are even close to the truth, it would be the one that likens the Abomination of Desolation to a man, but it would be more accurately compared to a **mon**, an old word used not just for man, but also for **moon**, the reason for which you will understand shortly. One of the reasons for these misconceptions that lead to the false teachings, is that Pastors do not know that there was a destruction prior to the flood, in the Bible, and that this initial 'desolation' was by fire. This fire is the reason we find the word 'dust' in Chapter 2 of Genesis.

Adam was 'molded' (Heb. 'Yatsar') from this 'dust', by the entity 'YHWH', but it was not truly 'dust'. The word for this 'dust' is 'aphar' (the same root for the words '**Phar**aoh' and '**Phar**isee') and is more accurately translated 'Cinders' or 'Ashes' in this context. This 'fire' was a result of man not being deemed 'good' in chapter one of Genesis, by Elohiym, his creators. When we are told at the end of chapter one of Genesis that everything Elohiym made, they saw as 'good', it is not speaking about man.

Man was not 'made' (Heb. 'Asah') in chapter one of Genesis, but rather 'created', (which is the word 'Bara' in the Hebrew), and was therefore not 'good', as the things that were 'made'. Further proof of the resulting destruction of the creation by fire, is the fact that the next words describing 'God's' behavior in relation to this 'work', ('rested', 'blessed', 'sanctified', 'finished' and 'ended'), are all more accurately translated, when placed into the proper context, as 'caused to fail', 'destroyed', 'exterminated' and 'made this work of creating man taboo'(See Strong's Concordance and Gesenius' Lexicon for further information).

I speak about this more in-depth to the members of my Inner Circle, but suffice to say for now, the foundation of what you have been taught has been turned upside down, just as Isaiah said it would be in Isaiah 29:15 & 16; and when the 'foundation' is skewed, the whole house is crooked. (This 'true' story, by the way, is where we get the story of 'Cinder-ella' which is simply a reference to the 'Cinders of Allah' or 'Elohiym'. (Elohiym and Allah stem from precisely the same root in the Arabic language, which is 'El' or 'Al'. Visit my <u>Inner Circle</u> at <u>www.InnerCircle.us</u> to read my paper entitled *Cinderella and Other Tales of the Pharies* which expounds on this issue.)

The instrument of this destruction of the original Adam or Adama, (which was actually a good thing), was the 'abomination of desolation' or 'the thing that makes desolate'. These were the same objects referred to by Ezekiel as 'wheels within wheels'. They are also inextricably linked to the parable of the Fig Tree.

## The Figs

'Esu' states that when the **Fig Tree** begins *putting forth leaves* 'Summer is nigh'. The phrase *Fig Tree* is translated *Suke* in the Greek and simply means, *Fig Tree*. Of course, this is not to be taken literally, because Fig Trees have put forth their leaves for thousands of years without being a fulfillment of prophecy. So, what then, does this Fig Tree symbolize?

There are 2 different words for *Fig* in the New Testament. The first word is 'Olenthos', which means an *unripe* fig. When we use the logograms of the Sumerian language to break down this word, 'Olenthos', we get the logograms 'Ul' + 'In' + 'Tus', which carry the meaning of 'Offensive Stars that were cast out' or 'exorcised'. When we realize that the word 'Stars' (as in Revelation chapter 12, verse 2), literally means 'Angels', then we realize that these 'Olenthos' are a reference to the 'rebellious Angels' that were 'cast out' of heaven. This is why 'Esu' cursed one Fig tree in Mark 11:13.

The other word for fig in the Greek is 'Sukon' and is the word used to describe a 'ripe' fig. These figs are a metaphor for the 'good' angels, who 'left not their first estate', and who will return with the Messiah to destroy the wicked, once again, with fire (Matthew 13). When we break down the word 'Sukon' into the logograms of the Sumerian, we get 'Su' + 'Kun'. The logogram 'Su' means 'Subarian' and the logogram 'Kun' means 'ladder', 'Stairs' or 'Staircase'. If you are familiar with the *red* cord let down by 'Rahab', (which is a Freemasonic anagram for 'Habiru' (Nibiru/Niburu - the returning planet, which also means 'Fruit Tree' and 'Harvest Time' in the Sumerian language), this will have more meaning to you.

The word Subarian (Sub-Arian) is a reference to, quite literally, those we read about in the books of II Peter and Jude, and are

the angels who are under the earth put there 'unto judgment'. But before you begin thinking, however, because of what you've been taught, that these angels have been put there to be that they will be judged **by** God, there is more you should know.

### The Watchers

These angels are what are referred to as the 'watchers', who were put there by God, as sentinels, to be stationed here on earth, waiting to be called upon by the Father, to assist him with his destruction of the wicked. These watchers are the actual ripe figs referred to in Matthew 13, from the tree that will put forth leaves, as a sign that Summer is nigh. The word 'Su' in 'Sukon' (Fig Tree) also means 'Red' and is a reference to the same dust we are told about in Genesis 2, which is also referred to as 'Spice' in the Sumerian language (See the movie 'Dune'). These are the ones, regardless of what you've been told, who are, just as prophesied, going to take back the birthright that was stolen by Jacob, when he 'posed' as them, (Esau), which means 'Red'.

These 'Watchers' are of the true Hebrews, who are from a planet known as Nibiru, or, if you go back to the ancient rendering of that same planet, it was known as 'Habiru', which is where we get the word 'Hebrew' (which is also a shrouded reference to 'Rahab', an anagram of 'Habiru' using the H, B and R, as is done in any Abjad language, which is void of vowels).

These are the true angels, who, like Esau (which also means 'Red'), destroyed the wicked men in obedience to the Father, and who will take back the inheritance that has been temporarily stolen by those masquerading as 'him', who we call Jews and whose name the Sumerians called 'Gu', which was spelled in the cuneiform as 'God'. These are the same ones the Mandeans state will rule 'as' God, but make no mistake, they are not one-and-the-same as the true Creator.

If you are wondering 'where' these Angels might be, take a look at your dollar bill. The reason that there is an eye above the pyramid, is because the pyramid, along with all of the other pyramids around the world, is a representation of where the underground gate ways leading to these Angels are, to those who have 'eyes to see'. The eye represents these 'watchers', and these pyramids (there are hundreds of others around the world, in case you were not aware), were placed there NOT to keep these watchers from escaping, but rather, to prevent US from getting to where they are, to escape the tyrranic rule and enslavement by those who rule over us today.

The Bible tells us that YHWH placed a Cherubim with a flaming sword that turned every way, East of Eden, to guard the way of the Tree of Life. The Bible also tells us that there are two mountains that are actually one-and-the-same, but are known by two different names. These are 'Mt. Sinai' and 'Mt. Horeb', HoReB and cHeRuB both begin with the Sumerian 'Ch' sound, pronounced 'K'. These words therefore both have the same 3 consonants in the Abjad language of Hebrew, which are K, R and V. Understanding this is crucial, because, just as in all Abjad and Abugida languages, consonants are very significant to the Freemasons and scribes who wrote the Bible, as well. Both of these groups used consonantal and other 'ciphers', such as the 'Atbash' cipher, throughout their writing of the Bible. (Yes, the Freemasons had a significant hand in the writing of the Bible...) Knowing this, we can now take the words Cherub and Horeb and break them down into the two Sumerian logograms of 'Kur' + 'Ub'. It is no coincidence that the combination of these two logograms carries the meaning of... 'Angle Mountain'.

# The Pyramid

When we uncover a little history about the Great Pyramid at Giza, you know that it once was covered in highly-polished, white limestone, which actually glowed when the sun hit it, we also find that the three pyramids at the Giza Plateau in Egypt are also perfectly aligned to the 3 stars in the belt of Orion, which is why the Sumerian logograms 'Kur' and 'Eb', as in Horeb, also mean, 'Waist Mountain', in reference to those stars on Orion's belt or 'Waist'. When we put the pieces together, we soon find that the pyramid, placed East of Eden by YHWH (The Anunaki), was one and the same as this 'Angle Mountain' which 'Shined every way', just as described in the Bible as the Cherubim with the Flaming Sword, that did the same.

The Pyramid at Giza, created by the Anunaki (The fallen angels), is one and the same as Horeb/Sinai/The Cherub with the Flaming Sword. This is also why the pyramid is called 'Sin-Ai', or 'Sin Eye', because the watchers, residing under it, are watching the 'sin', and making ready when they are called upon to eradicate it, for the final time.

Another reason that the pyramid has been the 'temple' of choice, placed 'over' these watchers, is that these Watchers also represent the 'Rib' that was taken from Adam. Knowing now who YHWH actually represents, and that the Anunaki were the fallen ones, we can deduce that the 'surgery' performed on Adam in the Garden, by YHWH (The Anunaki), was not a righteous act, ordained by the Creator.

The purpose for this 'splitting' of Adam to create Eve was to add something to the Rib of Adam. The 'Rib' is simply a shrouded reference to Ribose or 'RIB-o-nucleic acid', which is the 5-sided, star-shaped molecule which makes up one half of the genetic material that comprises our DNA chain. The thing that was added to this 'Rib' was six-sided, and is known as a 'Phosphate'. The word 'Rib' in the Sumerian means 'To be higher in rank'. When the phosphate (also known genetically as a 'Pyran') was added to the 'Rib' (placed over it – See my paper at <u>www.InnerCircle.us</u> entitled *Name Changes In The Bible And The Sacred Spiral Of The Ark* for further clarification on this issue), the Anunaki/YHWH broke a spiritual law and usurped the higher authority of the Father.

This Pyran is a representation of what the Bible calls **Remphan** (See Acts 7 and Amos 26), and means literally, 'Saturn', even in the Coptic (Egyptian) and Arabic languages. Saturn is represented by a six-sided Hexagon on its North pole, and is known for its blueness in color (See Wikipedia etc.). These two shapes, the hexagon and Pentagon, represent the number 5 and the number 6. In the Greek, the number 6 is 'Sera' and the number 5 is 'Penta', the two of which make up the word, 'Sera-Penta' or... 'Serpent', as it is referred to in Genesis during the creation in Eden. The pyramids being placed over those who represent the 'Rib' (The good angels/Watchers), therefore, is literally the Anunaki's way of reminding their brethren that they have 'raised themselves up like God', AS the Eagle, (See Obadiah 1:4) and have overtaken the RIB. In the old Norse language, incidentally, the man's name 'ARN' means 'eagle', and is simply an anagram for RNA, or, RIB-o-nucleic acid.

The Pyramids, especially the one at Giza, therefore, are symbols of the Phosphate or Pyran, meaning 'fire' (from where we get the word 'Pyramid', which means 'fire in the midst'), in our DNA as well as the 'Cherub with the flaming sword', as well as Mount Horeb, as well as Mount Sinai. This is why Jacob stated that his son DAN would be a 'Serpent' (Sera-Penta) in the way, as DAN is simply an anagram of DNA. The pyramid also represents the Fig Tree itself, as it is the symbol of where the Figs, themselves have been stationed, as the Sentry's awaiting their call to action, meaning, when they are ripe.

So, what, therefore, are the 'leaves' of this Fig Tree that are the true sign that 'Summer is nigh'?

### The Leaves

The root for the word 'leaves' in the Greek is 'Pula' and means 'tribe or people', and when I research the words for the aforementioned sentinel 'angels' in the Sumerian, the word 'relatives' keeps turning up, also. The word 'Pula', when broken down into the Sumerian logograms gives us 'Pu' + 'La'. Firstly, 'La' means 'abundance' and 'wealth', but the word 'Pu' adds something very interesting to this scenario, which sheds a great amount of light on what these 'leaves' truly are, for which we are to be 'watching', ourselves. But first, a personal story...

A short while ago, I met with a man who is a 32nd Degree Freemason and had been involved in Freemasonry since the mid '80's. I had been uncovering a tremendous amount of information and I was looking for some kind of confirmation that the things I had been uncovering were known to someone else, other than me. Knowing full well that no Pastor or member of the Clergy would be aware of any of the information, and would almost certainly scoff at my findings, I figured that certainly a Freemason would be able to confirm what I was learning in my research. I couldn't have been more wrong.

I sat with this nice gentleman, who was in his mid to late 50's, probing for bits of information that he might give me to shed light on my findings. I was very tactful in how I approached the issues and was careful as to how much information I gave him. To make a long story short, the man knew absolutely nothing of what I've found – NOTHING! What this ended up being was a 2-hour class in which I taught him what the 'real' meaning of much of the symbolism in Freemasonry actually meant. He was awestruck and referred me to a 33rd Degree Freemason with whom I've yet to speak. Bottom line, it confirmed my suspicion that even those at the highest levels of Freemasonry do NOT know the information that I'm sharing with you because it has been

intentionally hidden from them by the higher-ranking members of the Illuminati. (And this website only scratches the surface of what i've found from thousands of hours of intense research since the year 2000. To learn more, you can join my private Inner Circle by <u>clicking here</u> or by going to www.InnerCircle.us)

One thing this man did share with me, however, was an experience he had while hunting. He told me a story of when he and a friend of his were hunting in familiar woods that he grew up in as a young boy. While waiting on the deer, a UFO appeared not more than 40 feet above their heads. It was shaped like a football, but flattened in the middle and was grey metallic in color. It made no sound, whatsoever, but made the old-style power lines (the kind on the short wooden poles) that were right below it, hum like guitar strings. He said it was as if it was 'fueling itself' with the energy from those lines. He stated that it flew in circles several times, no more than 100 yards away, came back to 'perch' over their heads, and then flew off, never making a sound. He said that he and his friend were caught between fear and awe and didn't know exactly what to do, but he will never forget that experience. As little as I learned from that man that night, unbeknownst to me, his story was the 'real' confirmation that I was looking for, for what I'm about to share with you next.

The 'leaves' of the fig tree have to do with 'abundance and wealth', as we've seen from the Sumerian logogram 'La', but what about the 'Pu' part of the word? Well, if you have ever wondered whether spherical UFO's (Orbs or USO's – Unidentified Submersible Objects) are real or have ever seen one yourself and would like confirmation that they are of the Father, then you will be happy to know that the Sumerian logogram 'Pu' literally means 'Wheels' or 'Chariots'. And if these terms sound familiar to you from reading the Bible, then you know exactly what they are in reference to. These 'leaves' on the 'Fig Tree' are literally the same thing that Ezekiel described as the 'Wheel within a Wheel' and the same 'Chariots' that are described many places all throughout the Old Testament. The word 'wheel' is not as accurate as it should be, however, as the word really means 'to turn', and according to the description that we've seen given in the Bible, it should more accurately be translated a 'Sphere within a Sphere'.

What, therefore, is this prophecy telling us?

### The Meaning

We've been talking about a 'fruit tree', 'figs' and 'leaves', so let's get 'botanical' for a moment to see what we can glean by adding a little common sense to this prophecy.

Before a tree puts forth 'fruit', it always puts forth 'leaves'. The primary objective of the leaves is 'photosynthesis'. This involves 'gathering' the necessary elements such as sunlight, water, oxygen etc., that will enable the tree to put forth **fruit**. So after the necessary information has been gathered...*then the fruit can be put forth*. In this case, the fruit we are talking about is the 'fig', and there is something else that is very important to know about these 'figs', as you will soon see.

The 'Chariots' are the **Spheres** (Orbs) or **Leaves** of the 'Fig Tree', which is the Planet Niburu or Nibiru, and are of the watchers (good angels) that are gathering the information. When we begin to see them appearing in abundance in the skies, (and under the water and coming out of the water – which is also being reported) then the time of the end is near, and the reaping will begin. But what, exactly will do the reaping or shearing? If you're guessing that it might be the 'figs', themselves, then you are exactly correct.

In the Sumerian language, an 's' with a tilde (~) over it is pronounced 'sh' and the word for *fig* is *pish* ('*pis' with a ~ over the 's').* If we undo what the builders or Freemasons have done with the language, and turn the word back around, we get the word *ship* (See Isaiah 29:15 and 16). These are what we would refer to as space *ships* and have been put in front of us via modern cinema for decades in scores of movies like *War of the Worlds* or the more recent *Skyline*. The Sumerian word *fig*, however, is also *pesh* ('*pes' with a ~ over the 's').* If we treat this word in like manner, and reverse it, as is common in the secret societies based on Hermeticism, we also get the word...*sheep; a*  word commonly used all throughout the Bible to refer to people. (See Gen. 31:19, Deut. 28:4, I Sam. 16:9, Matt. 25:33, Mark 6:34, Mark 14:27 etc.) There is a play on words here with 'pis' and 'pes' (as we see all through the ancient texts), telling us simply that there will be 'harvesters' or 'reapers' (ships) and what, exactly they will be 'harvesting' or 'reaping'. (figs or sheep which are one and the same.)

To sum up the scenario that is being relayed to us in this prophecy, we have the *Fig Tree* (Planet Niburu/Nibiru/Habiru) putting forth the *Leaves* (Spheres/Wheels Within Wheels/Orbs) which send back information to the Tree, so it can Harvest, Reap and Shear the sheep/fruit/figs. (If you want to know exactly how this 'shearing' will occur and what the 'hair' is that will be cut off, then please visit my Inner Circle to learn more by <u>clicking here</u>. You will not want to miss this and this is the only spot on the planet where you will find this information - I guarantee it!)

Now, one thing you should know, is that these 'Spheres' are also one-and-the-same as what is known as the 'Abomination of Desolation'. The word for Abomination in Hebrew is Bdelugma. The Hebrew meaning is simply 'a foul or detestable thing which *indicates the destruction of the temple'*, however, when broken down into the Sumerian, logograms of DE+LUG+MA, it means 'to escape the bad and to leave'. When placed in front of the word for **Desolation** which is 'Eramoses' in Hebrew, we get the real meaning of the purpose of these crafts: 'to escape the bad and to leave the desolation'. This desolation will be by fire, also, as I teach at the **Inner Circle**, just like the Bible tells us it did under shrouded language in Genesis chapter 1. We see further evidence for this in the fact that DE+LUG+MA also means 'ashes', just like the word for dust does (Heb. aphar) in that same chapter. Also understand that the 'temple' is simply a metaphor for the body, just as the design of Solomon's 'temple'

tells us, along with many other references to the 'temple' throughout the ancient texts.

You should also know that, as another fulfillment of prophecy in the same chapter of Matthew, which foretells of the 'leaves', that representations of these orbs are already **standing** in the 'Holy' Place, among other places around the world.

These golden 'spheres within spheres' were made by an Italian artist named 'Arnoldo Pomodoro' and there are 11 (eleven) of them in places around the world, including the U.N., The American Enterprise Building in Des Moines Iowa, Hakone Japan open air museum, Berkley University in California, Ministerie Van Volksgezondheid in the Netherlands, Museum of Modern art in Lugano Switzerland (3 at that location), Hirshborn, Smithsonian in Washington, DC, Trinity College Dublin and, last but not least, a little-known place called...The Vatican in Rome, which is the 'Holy Place' referred to in the prophecy. ('Holy' in the Greek is from 'Hagos', which simply means 'an awful thing' or 'a place of religious reverence – it does not mean it is a place that glorifies the Creator.)

Now, let me speak to a couple of things. Firstly, we've been led to believe that the Abomination of Desolation is a bad thing. That is incorrect. These spheres were used by **Elohiym**, the actual Angels of the true Creator, to destroy that which was deemed 'bad'. Therefore, that which destroys bad things, we can consider 'good'. Secondly, the prophecy states that the Abomination of Desolation will be standing in the 'Holy Place', and therefore, Pastors have taken it to be an actual person, as stated before, like the anti-christ or the false prophet. The word 'standing', however, is the word 'Hestame' and simply means *'to set up in the presence of others'* (See Strong's concordance and Gesenius' Lexicon etc.)

If you do a search on Google Images for 'Sphera a Sphera' or 'Wheel within a Wheel' or 'Vatican Orb', you will see prophecy unfolding before your eyes, because it is 'set up' just like the Bible said it would be, outside of the Vatican in the open space for millions of people to see. But did you know that these 'leaves' or 'wheels' are actually being seen in the skies like never before, and being caught on film by people all across the world? To actually 'see' these 'wheels' in action, you can do a search on YouTube.com for 'night vision ufo' and have access to scores, if not hundreds of these orbs flying through the skies. But they do not just 'fly', as an airplane would, in a straight line only. Many people have caught them doing aerial maneuvers that are nothing short of amazing by our aviation standards. So, go to see yourself, and if you are so inclined, purchase a set of night vision binoculars to see them, first-hand. (And be sure to send me the footage!) (You can also view some of the best of these videos that have have been compiled at my Inner Circle by clicking here.)

As exciting as it is to finally understand the meaning of this prophetic parable, we must remember that when these things begin to happen, we are to make preparation for our safety. I do not believe that these 'wheels' will harm 'God's' people, however, I DO believe that those who currently rule this earth, **will**. They have already begun to intentionally strike fear into the hearts of people with movies like 'War of the Worlds' (where 'horns' and 'red rays' are used by those portrayed as alien invaders...just like the Sumerian language says they will be!), and 'Skyline' (which shows people getting 'harvested' or 'reaped' in 'nets' (just like the Sumerian languages says they will be!) But, just as 'Esu' stated, 'You shall know the truth and the truth shall set you free'.

The agenda of those who currently rule, is to create an environment of fear, and then, offer their own way of escape, which will simply be a quick trip to what they have referred to as 'Social Distancing Camps', which are nothing more than glorified concentration camps. (To find out more about this issue, a simple search on Google will provide ample information.)

There is no adequate church doctrine that will protect you and there is no pastor who understands how to prepare for the chaos that is quickly coming, and if you think there is, then I encourage you to read Jeremiah 2:8, 10:21, 12:10, 22:22, 23:1&2 and others, to see where following the pastors will lead you. History always repeats itself for those who do not *know* it and *learn* from it.

There is much more that I would like to share with you, including why these issues perfectly correlate with the recent deaths of millions of birds and fish in the United States and elsewhere, but time does not permit. I would, however, like to invite you to learn more in a very special environment that I have created for that purpose.

If you have an interest in learning more about these issues and much, MUCH more, simply go to <u>www.InnerCircle.us</u> There you can find out exactly how to become a member of my Inner Circle, where I share incredible, life-changing information with members from over a decade of research. There you will also find videos, forums, blog posts, discussion groups and my radio broadcasts related to truly unique subjects like the Law of God, DNA, Astronomy, End Time Preparation, The Pyramids, The Garden in Eden and much, much more. It is a resource like nothing else on the Internet, or anywhere else that is accessible to the average person.

I want you to know that I take the exegesis that I do very seriously and usually spend at least 8 to 12 hours or more nearly every day to uncover these things that have been intentionally hidden from 'God's' people. I do not say that to impress you, but to impress 'upon' you the fact that the information I am sharing with you is of the highest quality and is insight that you will find nowhere else. If you have not already read my first book, Blueprint For Bondage, you may want to do that, also. It has now been read in over 40 countries and has been highly acclaimed as a 'classic'. It's enlightening, has gotten excellent reviews and I think you would enjoy it immensely. You can find out more at <u>www.BlueprintForBondage.com</u> (But the meat of the information and much, much more from my in-depth research is at <u>www.InnerCircle.us</u>)

I appreciate you taking the time to read this paper and I truly hope it has been a blessing to you and that you have found it helpful. Most importantly, however, I hope that it has helped you draw closer to the Father, providing you with a sense of peace, knowing that He is in control and will cross all barriers to be with His children.

We live in very perilous times, but the Creator is aware of everything that is going on, including that thing, whatever it may be, that you might think he would never even care about. He loves you!

Until next time, be blessed and be prepared by knowing the Truth that will set you free!

Dr. Scott McQuate, Author, Researcher, Exegete

© Copyright All Rights Reserved No Form Of This Document May Be Duplicated Or Distributed Without Prior Written Consent By The Author <u>DrScott@McQuate.com</u>